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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT

Statement in this report that describes the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations or predictions of the future may be ‘forward looking statement’ within the 
meaning of the applicable securities laws and regulations. The Company cautions that such 
statements involve risks and uncertainty and that actual results could differ materially from 
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could cause difference include but are 
not limited to raw material cost or availability, demand and pricing in the Company’s 
markets, changes in government regulations, economic developments within the countries 
in which the Company conduct business and other factors relating to the Company’s 
operations, such as litigations, labour negotiations and fiscal regimes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

FY 2019-20

Work from home and On-line education, if they become lasting features, will adversely impact many segments like Travel, Commercial Real Estate etc 

including some segments of Paper Industry as well. Many grades of Paper have Industrial end uses and also need conversion. Many of these users are 

MSMEs which may face constraints like shortage of skilled labour and capital thus impacting the recovery process.

While bulk of the segments are expected to gradually regain previous levels of operation,  trends like On-line classes and Work from home may have 

a lasting impact on some segments. The pace of recovery also remains quite uncertain.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

thDue to 'Coronavirus pandemic', the Government of India announced a series of lock-downs from March 24 , 2020. This resulted in complete 

suspension of economic activities  all over the country. Last part of financial year was impacted adversely for most Industries .

While the lock down is being gradually eased, the pace of recovery is very uncertain. Many forecasts predict  Nil or even negative growth. Country 

Credit rating has been downgraded

Paper Industry too has been impacted although different segments are positioned differently. Packaging segment has fared comparatively better as 

there was continuing demand for Consumer products, Food products and Medicines etc. Industrial users of Paper other than these Industries were 

severly impacted by lock down. Writing /Printing Segment also suffered due to closure of Educational Institutions and Offices.

STRENGTHS

WEAKNESSES 

The availability of raw-material and energy at globally competitive price has always been a matter of concern for the Industry.  In addition continued 

cheaper imports under FTA exacerbate the postion. 

 INDIAN ECONOMY &  PAPER INDUSTRY

The per capita consumption of paper in India currently stands at around 13 KG which is relatively lower compared to other developed and developing 

countries (Global average  57 KG and the Asian average  40 KG).  In India, per capita paper consumption is expected to exceed 17 KG by 2024-25,  thus 

providing ample long term growth opprtunities. 

Global economy was beset with trade tensions between US and China and slow down in most parts of the World. In spite of these, the World Economy 

had been chugging along at a steady even if a slow pace till December, 2019. Outbreak of Corona Virus in China and its rapid spread through Europe 

first and rest of the World later changed lives dramatically both socially and economically. It has turned out to be a crisis of unprecedented 

dimensions never witnessed before in living memory. Governments and communities tried to cope with it as best as they could. Although it is in 

declining trend in many countries, devastation left in its aftermath is not yet fully apparent. A Global recession looms for the first time in many 

decades.

OPPORTUNITIES

Once the effects of COVID -19 wear out, India is expected to regain its growth trajectory. 'Atmanirbhar Barat Abhiyan' should provide  a boost  to the 

rejuvenation.

THREATS

As in the past, momentum of Social Farm Forestry Program was maintained during the year too. During the year, approximately 381 lacs seedlings 

were planted and distributed by your company. Further, an area of 22,661 Hectares were added under the plantations making a total coverage of 1,69, 

692 Hectares, thus achieving a substantial improvement over previous year.

RISKS & CONCERN

The economic jolt from the coronavirus outbreak will weigh significantly on the growth prospects at least in the short term. Financial stress among 

the rural households, weak job creation and the resultant reduction in purchasing power will impact the demand.

Under Social Farm Forestry programme, plantation is undertaken in a big way on the farmers'  land  thus generating not only income for  the farmers 

but also providing rural employment.

SOCIAL FARM FORESTRY
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While Your Company will make all efforts to return to normalcy at the earliest and resume growth path thereafter, it is difficult to predict performance 

with any degree of certainty in view of unprecedented nature of the situation.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

b)  Adherence to applicable accounting standards.

c)  Periodic review to effectively manage working capital.

e) Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and listing regulations.

f)  Effective use of resources and safety of assets.

Financial and operational performance of the company for the year 2019-20 was satisfactory considering various challenges and constraints.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The changes in key financial ratios as compared to previous financial year are as under:

Your company periodically reviews Internal control systems and procedures to ensure conduct of business effectively and efficiently. Internal control 

system ensures :

a) Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting.

d) Review of capital investments and long term business plans.

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Return on Networth (%)  [decreased due to lower 7.9 12.3

Stock Turnover ratio (No. of times)  4.6 7.1

Debtors Turnover ratio (No. of times)  62.1 50.2

Current ratio  (No. of times)  3.5 2.9

Interest-Service Coverage Ratio  (No. of times)  76.8 80.1

Operating Profits Margin (%)  14.3 13.6

Net Profits Margin (%)  10.7 13.8

Debt-Equity ratio (%)  NA NA

net profits for the year 2019-20 vis-a-vis previous year] 
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HUMAN RESOURCES

This Report contains forward looking statements based upon the information available with the company, assumptions with regard to global 

economic conditions, Government policies etc. The company do not  guarantee accuracy of the assumptions and perceived performance of the 

company in future. It is thus cautioned that the actual results may materially differ from those expressed or implied in the report.

Paper Industry is cyclical in nature and its performance also depends on the global pulp and paper demand supply situation and developments in 

domestic Economy. While long term prospects appear bright, challenges remain in the near term.

Your company recognizes human resources as its invaluable asset. The company regularly conducts  HR training and development programs at all 

levels. Industrial relations remain cordial throughout the year under review. There are 457 employees on the company's roll.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS



stAudited financial results for the year ended 31  March, 2020 are summarised below:

AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors of your company is pleased to present the Directors' Report together with Audited Financial Results of the company for the 
styear ended 31  March 2020.  

1.  FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 

                   (Rs. in Crores)

3. STATE OF THE COMPANY AFFAIRS

thThere is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the year. Due to COVID-19 Pandemic and resultant lockdown from 24  March, 

2020, the operations of the company and supply-chain got affected. The company does not have any major pending contract/agreement, non-

fulfilment of which may have significant impact on company's business.

  

The economic jolt from the continuing Covid-19 spread will weigh significantly on the operations in the near term. However, stimulus packages 

announced by the Government should mitigate the potential damage and also enable an early revival. It is however difficult to forsee impact on 

different segments along of the supply chain.

Your company's reported satisfactory financial performance was commensurate with the business activity for the year 2019-20. Profit after tax for the 

year stood  at  Rs. 37.27 Crores vis-a-vis Rs. 53.19 Crores for FY 2018-19.   

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 2019-20 

The Coronavirus outbreak known as Covid-19 has severely impacted businesses around the world during last quarter of FY 2019-20. In many 

countries including India, there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns.

Production and sales volume for the year remained in line with the subdued market conditions and the unprecedented Covid-19 pandemic. Further, 

higher raw material prices impacted profitablity of the company for the year. However, we could reduce Energy costs which substantially offset the 

Raw Material price escalation.This and other cost containement measures led to somewhat better margins.

EXPECTATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2020-21 

Your company is making all efforts to alleviate impact of the pandemic on its business to the extent possible

4.  ANNUAL- RETURN EXTRACTS

Extracts of Annual Return as provided in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure-I.

2.  DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Considering performance of the company for the year 2019-20, your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs. 2.50/- per equity share 

(25%) subject to approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the company.  The company has transferred Rs. 3.00 Crores 

out of profits for the year to General Reserve.

DIRECTORS’REPORT
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5.  BOARD MEETINGS/AUDIT COMMITTEE
th th th a) During the financial year 2019-20 five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 29  May, 2019, 7  Aug., 2019, 19  Sept., 2019, 

th th14  Nov., 2019 and 12  Feb., 2020.

 b) Audit & Risk Management Committee-

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

  The Company has constituted the Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and its terms of reference are in conformity with SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The 

composition of Committee is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review  is presented in a separate section forming part of  the Annual Report for 

2019-20.

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has established a 'Vigil Mechanism' for directors and employees to report their 

genuine concerns to the company. The company oversees this 'Vigil Mechanism' through the Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board.

7. VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

8.  ENVIRONMENT, POLLUTION CONTROL AND SAFETY

Your company is committed to provide safe working conditions and healthy environment to all its stakeholders. The company is accredited with ISO 

9001 : 2015, ISO 14001: 2015, and ISO 18001:2007 which signifies adoption of integrated quality, environment and safety management systems to 

harmonize Industrial activities with environmental preservation with letter and spirit. The company has  requisite environmental consents from the 

Government authorities.

Your company has been awarded the following awards  during the financial year 2019-20 :

- Two (2) awards in paper sector for outstanding achievement in Safety Management and Environment management by Greentech Foundation, 

New Delhi in its Annual Environmental Award-2019. 

- Platinum Award in paper sector for outstanding achievement in  Environment management by Apex India in its Environment Excellence Award-

2019.

- Excellence award in National Conventional on Quality Concepts, Varanasi-2019 organised by Quality Circle  Forum of India.

9. SOCIAL FARM FORESTRY

As in the past, your company continues to foster plantations with active co-operation of the farmers. This scheme involves supply of high quality 

clones/seedlings apart from providing technical assistance, modern farming methods and education to the farmers through various programs. The 

company further stepped-up propagation and distribution of clonal plants and the area coverage during the year.

11. INTERNAL CONTROLS

12. REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

13. DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The company has adequate internal control systems in place on the basis of which financial accounting is done and periodically financial statements 

are prepared. Such Internal control systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Your company adopted a policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) to fulfill its obligation towards the society. The CSR Policy may be accessed 

on the company's website at http://www.starpapers.com. The key philosophy of the Company's CSR initiative is to promote development through 

social and economic transformation. The composition of Committee is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

The company is in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder in respect of deposits.

The Report on CSR activities undertaken during the year 2019-20 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure-II.

  

 I) Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Shrivardhan Goenka (DIN-00030375)  shall retire by rotation at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his appointment.

th ii) The shareholders at their 80th AGM held on 19  Sept., 2019 appointed Mr. Sunil Srivastav (DIN-00237561) and Ms. Savita L. Acharya 

(07038198) as Independent director w.e.f   19th Sept., 2019 for a period of 5 years.

The company has not invited any fixed deposits during the year and as such there has been no default in repayment of deposit or payment of interest 
st stthereon during the year. There were no outstanding fixed deposits as on 31  March, 2020. (Rs. Nil as on 31  March, 2019).

10. FIXED DEPOSITS
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th (v)  Mr. G.P. Goenka and Ms. Savita L. Acharya have resigned from Directorship of the company on 30  July, 2020 due to personal reasons and 

other pre-occupations respectively.

15. LOAN, GUARANTEE, INVESTMENTS ETC.

No company has become or ceased to be the company's subsidiary/joint venture/associate company during the year.

17. PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

14. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE/POLICY

The Board of Directors has constituted a 'Nomination & Remuneration Committee' which follows the company's policy on directors' appointment 

and remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive attitudes, independence of a director and other matters provided under 

section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence 

as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The company's familiarization program for 

Independent Directors is posted on the website of the company and can be accessed at http://www.starpapers.com/familarisation_prog.pdf.

The Committee shall consider ethical standards of integrity, qualification, expertise and experience for appointment of Directors/KMP etc. and 

recommend to the Board of Directors. Directors/ KMP etc shall be appointed as per the procedure laid down in applicable laws.

The Committee will recommend the remuneration to be paid to Directors/KMP etc requiring Committee approval as per statutory provisions. The 

level and composition of remuneration so determined by the Committee shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the 

appointee(s). Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the company can be accessed from the company website -www.starpapers.com.

The gist of company's policy on nomination and remuneration is as under :

th th  iii) The shareholders at their 80  AGM held on 19 Sept., 2019 approved the appointment of Mr. G.P. Goenka (DIN-00030302) as Executive 
thDirector w.e.f  7  Aug., 2019  for a period of  3 years.

th th (iv) The shareholders at their 80  AGM held on 19  Sept., 2019 approved the re-appointment of Mr. Madhukar Mishra (DIN-00096811) as 
stManaging  Director of the company  w.e.f.  1  July, 2019 for a period of three (3) years.

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments have been given in the financial statements.

16. SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTUE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 AND  OUTGO

Particulars regarding energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings/outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are furnished as Annexure-III to this Report.

18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

i)   Name of the employee who is in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 102 lacs or more during the financial year 2019-20 :

*including employer's provident fund contribution, if any.
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Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(q) and Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding employees' remuneration are given hereunder :

a)   Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees

 b)    % increase in remuneration of each director, CEO, CFO, CS in the financial year 2019-20

*appointed during the financial year.

g) No director is getting any variable component of remuneration except commission to Executive Chairman and performance pay to the 

Managing Director are decided by the Board of Directors every year based on performance of the company, terms of appointment and 

applicable statutory provision. Remuneration is paid as per remuneration policy of the company.

e)  Average increase in remuneration inter-alia depends upon rate of  inflation, individual's performance, company policy, human resource 

demand-supply position, negotiations with trade unions, company performance etc.

The company has a Policy on Nomination & Remuneration and Evaluation of directors etc. The Board of Directors evaluates its own performance, that 

of Committee(s) and individual director(s) on annual basis in the manner envisaged by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the 

Board. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) also ensures that evaluation process is carried out by the Board every year as per the 

prescribed method.

d) There were  457 permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31.03.2020.

19. PERFORMANCE  EVALUATION

f) Average percentage increase in salaries of employees vis-a-vis managerial personnel - Average percentage increase in salaries of employees 

was 11% vis-a-vis 17.16% in salary of managerial personnel for FY 2019-20.

c)  % increase in median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2019-20 vis-a-vis previous year was 6%.

285.16



The Board of Directors place on record their gratitude for the invaluable support and efforts put in by all the Stakeholders viz., employees, investors, 

dealers, customers, suppliers, bankers and Government authorities.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place : New Delhi Shiromani Sharma
stDate : 31  July , 2020 Chairman

Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of Audit 

& Risk Management Committee has appointed M/s K.B. Saxena  & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the 

financial year 2019-20.

As required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) Directors Responsibility Statement on  preparation and presentation of these accounts is as per 

Annexure-IV to this Report.

Your company has a structured approach to manage its human resources in line with changing needs of the organisation. Industrial relations 

remained harmonious during the year.

23. AUDITORS

 

20. HUMAN RESOURCES AND WELFARE

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there was no case reported under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

21. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

24.  COST AUDITORS

th thThe members at its 78  Annual General Meeting held on 14  Sept., 2017 appointed M/s Jain Pramod Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi as 
rdstatutory auditors of the company to hold office from till the conclusion of 83  AGM of the company.

22. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 I) Statutory Audit : 

  The observations of the auditor read with relevant notes on the financial statements are self-explanatory.

  M/s D. Dutt & Co., company secretary in practice, secretarial auditor of the company has done secretarial audit for FY 2019-20. Secretarial 

audit report is attached as Annexure-VI. The observations of the secretarial auditor in the report are self-explanatory.

A separate report on corporate governance, along with a certificate from the statutory auditors confirming the compliance with corporate 

governance requirements has been annexed as Annexure-V to Directors' Report.  

26. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of 

business and on arm's length basis. During the year, the company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties 

which could be considered material. Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

are given in Annexure-VII in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

25. AUDITORS' REPORT

 ii) Secretarial Audit :

27. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is having Risk Management  framework covering identification, evaluation and control measures to mitigate the identified business 

risks.

28. LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES     

Your company's equity shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE). The company has paid 

the listing fees to the stock exchanges for the financial year 2019-20.

29. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
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 i) CIN    - L21011WB1936PLC008726

Form No. MGT-9

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020

 iii)  Name of the Company  - Star Paper Mills Limited

 v)  Address of the Registered office and contact details  - 'Duncan House' II Floor, 31, N.S Road,

e-mail : star.cal@starpapers.com

 vi) Whether listed company   - Yes

 vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar   - Kfin Technologies Private Limited

  and Transfer Agent, if any Karvy Selenium Tower B

 ii)  Registration Date    - 31-08-1936

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 500 032

Tel: 040- 67161585

Toll Free No:1800 345 4001

Kolkata – 700001.  Tel: 033- 22427380

 iv)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company  - Public Company / Limited by shares

e-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company

ANNEXURE-I

 (Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

 i) Category-wise Share Holding as per Attachment -A

 iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding as per Attachment-C

V. INDEBTEDNESS

 ii) Shareholding of Promoters as per Attachment-B

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment as per Attachment-F

 iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) as per Attachment-D

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

 v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel As per Attachment-E

 Under the Companies Act, 2013/SEBI Regulations, there were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended 

March 31, 2020 except fine of Rs. 2360/- levied by BSE Ltd. for one day delay in filing Corporate Governance Report for the Quarter ended 

31.03.2019.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL -as per Attachment G.

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES



ATTACHMENT-A
I).    Category-wise shareholding
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ATTACHMENT-B

ATTACHMENT-C

ATTACHMENT-D

ATTACHMENT-E

ii).    Shareholding of Promoters

iii).    Change in Promoters’Shareholding

iv).    Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

v).    Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
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ATTACHMENT-F

v).   INDEBTEDNESS -  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

b. Remuneration to other directors:

c. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

ATTACHMENT-G

vi).   REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
          a. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager :

Independent Directors and non-executive directors are only paid sitting fees for attending Board /committee meetings. Kindly refer

'Corporate Governance Report' for details of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors and non-executive directors during the FY 2019-20.  

494.02285.16
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 DETAILS OF AMOUNT SPENT ON CSR ACTIVITIES DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

 - Total amount spent for the financial year       Rs. 128.26 lacs

 Policy and projects or programs and the composition of CSR Committee.    in the Directors' Report.

4. Details of CSR spent during the financial year :

 programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the   Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

2.  Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years    Rs. 6380 lacs

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy including overview of projects or   Please refer to Section

3. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount mentioned in item 2 above)  Rs. 127.60 lacs

 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year     Details given below

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2019-20

 - Amount unspent, if any         Not Applicable

ANNEXURE-II

Promoting art and cultural 

programs

Installation of Solar LED street 

lights, promoting social farm 

forestry, development and 

cleaning of fishery ponds  etc.

Promoting gender equality, 

woman empowerment and care 

for senior citizen, children and 

economically backward people 

through public awareness.

Donation to Zika Sainik Kalyan 

Avam Punarvas Adhikari

Organised various camps for 

employment enhancing 

vocational skill specially for 

women, Donation for 

construction of school building, 

distribution of copies & school 

bags , promoting awareness 

among public etc.

Installation of Handpumps for 

drinking water, Organised various 

Health Camps & awareness 

towards health.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Distt.

Distt.

Saharapur

Distt.

Saharapur

Distt.

Saharapur

Saharapur

Distt.

Saharapur

Distt.

Saharapur

47.42

18.14

3.21

57.51

1.83

0.15

3.21

18.14

57.51

47.42

1.83

0.15 0.15

1.83

47.42

18.14

57.51

3.21

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct

Promotion of Health care 

including preventive health care 

and sanitation and making 

available safe drinking water

Promoting education, including 

special education and 

employment enhancing 

vocational skill specially for 

women

Promoting gender equality, 

woman empoerment, welfare of 

senior citizen and childern etc.

Ensuring environmental 

sustainability/ ecological balance

Promotion of national heritage, 

art and culture etc.

Measures for benefit of armed 

forces veterans, war widows and 

their dependents

CSR project or 

activity identified
Sl.

No.

Sector in which

Project is covered

Projects or

Programs  (1)

Local area or

other (2) Specify

the State and

District where 

projects or

programs were

undertaken

Amount outlay

(budget)

project

or program

wise

(Rs in lacs)

Amount outlay

(budget) project

or program wise

Sub heads (1)

Direct

expenditure on 

projects or

programs (2)

Overheads

(Rs in lacs)

Cumulative

expenditure

upto the

reporting

period

(Rs in lacs)

Amount spent

Direct or

through

implementing

Agency

Responsibility Statement : The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Madhukar Mishra     
Managing Director

st31  July, 2020 

Shrivardhan Goenka
     Chairman,

CSR Committee
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ANNEXURE-III

 a) Installation of energy efficient screw compressors and vaccum pumps.

Information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

 The company has taken following measures for conservation of energy :

 IV. Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

  Impacts of aforesaid  measures are as under :

 II. Additional investments and proposals being implemented for reduction in consumption of energy :

  a) Development of new product varieties.

  b) Evaluation of new species of fibrous raw material from different areas.

  - Partial replacement of coal with agro-fuel.

 b) Replacement of AFBC boiler ID fan with energy efficient fan.

 c) Modification in pulp washing street to achieve higher concentration of weak black liquor.

 f) Installation of APFC panels to improve power factor.

A. PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY -

  - Installation of new 120m3 digestor.

 d) Replacement of conventional lights with energy efficient LEDs  for power saving

 e) Installation of VFDs at new locations.

  - Installation of new pope reel on paper machine-III.

  - Renovation of waste heat recovery boiler (WHRB).

 III. The above projects given in I. above involved a cost of approximately Rs. 300 lacs. 

  Reduction in energy consumption and control on wastage.

  - Replacement of conventional lights with solar energy driven lights. 

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION -

 I. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

 Department of Science and Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science and Technology, Government of India recognizes our in-house 

Research & Development (R&D) Department. Your company has undertaken the following R & D activities during the FY 2019-20:

 1. The major areas in which the company carried in-house R&D projects are as under:

 2. Benefits derived as a result of above R&D projects

  a) Potential to explore new market segment.

  b) Improvement in the quality of existing products and cost reduction.

  c) Reduction in fresh water consumption.

  c) Improvement in ETP discharge water quality.

  Efforts made, in brief, towards Technology absorption, adaptation & innovation and benefits derived are as under :

  a) Development of new grades of paper.

  a) Capital       Nil 

 3. Future Plan of Action

  During the year, there was no instance of  major technology absorption, adaptation & innovation.

 4. Expenditure on R&D-                Rs. in lacs

  b) Further optimization of water and energy consumption.

  b) Revenue      15.25

 II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION :

  c) Total           15.25

  d) R&D Expenditure as a percentage of total Turnover  0.04%
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Place : New Delhi Shiromani Sharma

                                   For and on behalf of the Board

  a) Technology imported Nil

 Outgo – Rs. 379.89 lacs

stDate : 31  July , 2020 Chairman

  b) Year of import & country Nil

                     

 III. INFORMATION RELATED TO IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY :

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO -

 Earnings  – Rs. 182.08 lacs

  c)  Has technology been fully absorbed? N.A

  d) If not fully absorbed, areas where it has not taken place, reasons there for and future plans of action. N.A

1. In preparation of accounts, applicable accounting standards have been followed .

2. Such accounting policies as were reasonable and prudent were selected in preparing the accounts and these were applied consistently. Further 

judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent were also made in the course of preparing the accounts so as to give a true and fair 

view of the Company's state of the affairs as at the end of the financial year and its profit for financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

4. The accounts have been prepared on going concern basis.

As required under the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board wishes to confirm that :  

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Place : New Delhi Shiromani Sharma

3. Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of proper accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

6. The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and  with laid down internal financial 

controls to be followed by the company and such system are adequate and operating effectively. 

    For and on behalf of the Board

5. The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such internal financial controls are adequate and 

operating effectively.

stDate : 31  July , 2020 Chairman

ANNEXURE-IV
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ANNEXURE-V

II. Board of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 (a)  Composition

 Your company's governance philosophy is based on trusteeship, transparency and accountability. The Company believes that good corporate 

governance goes much beyond the mere fulfilling of statutory obligations. The company has been continuously pursuing good corporate 

governance practices based on professional excellence, business ethics, and transparency which operate within the accepted norms of propriety, 

equity, fairness and a sense of justice. 

(Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

I. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance

 The Board of Directors is entrusted with all functions of the company. It ensures that the company operates in best interest of the stakeholders.

  The company's policy is to have an appropriate mix of Promoter, Executive and Independent Directors to maintain independence of the 

Board. In totality, the Board has eight (8) directors including Executive Chairman and the Managing Director. The Board has five (5) Non-

executive Independent directors including one Woman director, and One (1) Non-executive, non-Independent director. Below is the 
stcomposition of the Board of Directors as on 31  March , 2020 :

The Directors of your company are pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for the financial year ended 31st March , 2020.
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** represents Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit Committee & Stakeholders' Relationship  Committee only.

*** Mr. G.P. Goenka resigned from directorship of the company on 28.05.2019 for personal reasons. On recommendation of Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee, re-appointed as 'Executive Chairman' w.e.f 7th Aug., 2019 with approval of the Board and the shareholders. Mr. Goenka 

have, however, resigned from directorship of the company on 30.07.2020 for personal reasons.

* excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, memberships of 

Managing Committees of various Chambers/Bodies and Alternate Directorships.

****re-appointed as Managing Director w.e.f 1st July, 2019 for a period of 3 years.

*****Ms. Savita L. Acharya resigned from directorship of the company on 28.05.2019 for personal reasons and confirmed that there was no other 

material reason of resignation except above. On recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, re-appointed as Additional director 

w.e.f 7th Aug., 2019 by the Board and Independent director w.e.f 19th Sept., 2019 by the shareholders. Ms. Savita L. Acharya have resigned from 

directorship of the company on 30.07.2020 due to some other pre-occupations.

There is no relationship between the directors of the company except that Mr. Shrivardhan Goenka is son of Mr. G.P. Goenka and as such they are 

related to each other. The company's familiarization program for Independent Directors are posted on the website of the company and can be 

accessed at http://www.starpapers.com/familarisation_prog.pdf.

******Appointed as Independent director w.e.f   19th Sept., 2019 for a period of 5 years.

In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and they are independent of 

the management . 

 (b)  Meetings  and Attendance

The Directors’performance evaluation criteria is given in the Directors' Report.

st th th th  During the year ended 31  March, 2020, five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on  29  May, 2019, 7  Aug., 2019, 19  Sept., 
th th2019,  14  Nov., 2019 and 12  Feb., 2020.
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  Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Last Annual General  Meeting

III.   Code of Conduct

A code of Conduct for all its Board members and senior management personnel for avoidance of conflict of interest has been laid down and is 

available on the company's website. Necessary declarations affirming compliance have been received for the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2020. There were no material personal interest/personal benefits received by the Board members/senior management personnel, which could lead 

to potential conflict of interest with the Company as a result of their position.
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 The composition of the Committee and details of its meetings during the FY 2019-20 are as under:

th During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, four (4) Committee meetings were held on  29th May, 2019, 7th Aug., 2019, 14  Nov., 2019 and 
th12  Feb., 2020.

 (b)    Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

  Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 as amended, the Stakeholders' Relationship 

Committee redresses shareholder/ investor grievances like non-receipt of Annual Report, dividend etc., approves transfer/ transmission/ 

sub-division/consolidation of shares, issue of duplicate share certificate , de-materialization/re-materialization of shares  etc. The company 

secretary acts as the secretary to the committee.

 Composition

 (c)   Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 During the year, Seventeen (17) Investor complaints were received and all the complaints were resolved. There is no pending complaint at the 

end of the year.

  A Nominations and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to discharge functions envisaged under section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

 Shareholders Complaint(s)

Mr. Saurabh Arora, Company Secretary, is  the compliance officer of the company.

th thDuring the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, four (4) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee meetings  were held on  29  May, 2019, 7  Aug., 
th th2019, 14  Nov., 2019 and 12  Feb., 2020.

IV.  Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has the following Committees for better and more focused attention to the affairs of the Company before placing the same 

before the Board–i) Audit & Risk Management Committee; ii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee; iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

(NRC); iv) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

 (a)  Audit & Risk Management Committee

  There is 'Audit & Risk Management Committee' of the Board and its role and terms of reference are in conformity with Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 as amended. Statutory auditors, Internal auditors and the Cost auditors are 

invited from time to time to the Committee meetings. Besides, the Committee assists the Board in overseeing and approving the 

company's risk management framework.  The company secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee. 

 Composition

 The composition of the Committee and details of its meetings during the FY 2019-20 are as under :
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  Your company is committed to its social responsibilities. Under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The composition 

of the Committee is as under:

 (d) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, Three (3) meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee  were held on  29th May, 2019, 

7th Aug., 2019 and 12th Feb., 2020.

No CSR Committee meeting was held during the year. 

 Composition

 The composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and details of its meeting(s) held during the FY 2019-20 are as under :

The details of remuneration of the directors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 are as under: 

Remuneration-package of Executive Director(s) is determined and recommended by the remuneration committee and approved by the Board of 

Directors and the shareholders. Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is  restricted  to sitting  fees for attending  meetings  of  the  Board and 

sub-committees of the Board. 

V.  Remuneration of Directors                                                             

# Salary includes allowances, performance pay and commission on net profits, if any. Performance pay and/or commission is/are decided by the 

Board based on yearly performance review. 

## Perquisites and other benefits include company's contribution to Provident Fund but exclude contribution to  Gratuity Fund.

None of the directors except Mr. S.V Goenka (45,500 equity shares) holds any shares in the company. Except above, no non-executive director had any 

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the company.
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VII.  Disclosures

 (ii) The Board periodically reviews risk management policy of the company.  There was no non-compliance during the last three years by 

the company on any matter relating to the Capital Markets. There were no penalties, strictures imposed on the company by stock 

exchanges/SEBI during the year except fine of Rs. 2000/- plus GST imposed by BSE for delayed filing of quarterly corporate governance 

report by one day. Further, we are in compliance with applicable corporate governance requirements as given in Reg. 17 to 27 and Reg. 

46(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Service contracts, severance fees, notice period, stock option etc.

  As there was negligible foreign exchange exposure, there was no hedging activities. 

 (iv) Fees to statutory auditors etc.

 (vii) The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have given requisite compliance certificate on financial statements 

and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

  In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Circular 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and Securities and Exchange 

Board of India vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020, interalia, permitted conduct of Annual 

General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility. Consequently, 81st AGM of the company will be held through Video Conferencing/ Other 

Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM facility) as per below details:  

st  81  AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

 (v) Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants/any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity - Nil.

VI. The company has no subsidiary or holding company. 

 (viii) Means of communication

The appointment of Executive Director(s) is governed by resolutions passed by the Nominations & Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 

and the Shareholders of the company which covers the terms and conditions of such appointment.

There is no separate provision for payment of severance fee under the resolutions governing the appointment of Executive Directors. Statutory 

provisions however will apply in case of severance of service. The appointments are terminable by six months' notice from either side. The company 

has not given any stock option scheme to the directors/employees.

 (iii) The company has established a 'Vigil Mechanism' for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns. The company oversees this 

'Vigil Mechanism' through the Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board and no one has been denied access to the Audit 

Committee. There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions with non-executive directors. The Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report forms part of the Annual Report.

 (i) There were no material significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict  with the interest of the company at large. All 

related party transactions during the year under reference were in the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. The policy on 

dealing with related party transactions can be accessed at http://starpapers.com/policyparty.pdf. & policy on material subsidiary can  be 

accessed at http://starpapers.com/policymaterial.pdf.

 (vi) Commodity price risk, foreign exchange risks and hedging activities-

th  -Particulars of director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM have been given in Notice of the 81st AGM to be held on 28  

Sept., 2020.

  The quarterly results of the Company are normally announced within 45 days from the end of each quarter, except for March quarter which 

are announced within 60 days of the close of the financial year; such results are published in the The Financial Express /Business Standard, 

and 'Aajkal'. The financial results of the company is provided at the website  www.starpapers.com. There is no presentation made to 

institutional investor or to the analysts. The website also displays other important information. 

 (ix) Shareholder Information

  Total fees for all services rendered by the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor 

is a part.- Rs. 11.70 Lacs.

th28  Sept., 2020

at 3:00 PM

st
21  Sept., 2020 to

th28  Sept., 2020

rd
3  Oct., 2020

onwards

(if declared)
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Kfin Technologies Private Limited.,

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32,

Gachibowli, Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally

Hyderabad – 500 008.

Phone: 040-67161585

Compliance certificate of the Auditors

The Registrars and Share Transfer Agents process every fortnight requests for approving share transfers. The processing activities with respect to 

requests received for share transfer are completed within 7-10 days from the date of receipt of request. There were no shares pending for transfer as 

on 31st  March, 2020.

The Shareholders holding shares in the electronic form should address their correspondence, except those relating to dividend, to their respective 

Depository Participants.

Transfer System 

Registrar & Share Transfer Agents :

Address for correspondence :

The Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent is Kfin Technologies Private Limited.

e-mail:kishore.bv@kfintech.com

-The company has obtained certificate from the statutory auditors certifying compliance of conditions of corporate governance as stipulated under 

SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the same is annexed. This certificate forms part of the Annual Report for 

2019-20 to be sent to stock exchanges.

-A certificate has been received from M/s D. Dutt & Co., Practising company secretaries, that none of the Directors on the Board of the company 

except Mr. G.P. Goenka (DIN: 00030302) and Ms. Savita L. Acharya has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors 

of companies by SEBI, MCA or any other statutory authority.

The shares of the Company can be traded in dematerialized form with both NSDL (National Securities Depository Ltd.)  and CDSL (Central Depository 

Services (India) Ltd.) As on 31st March, 2020, a total of 1,55,12,454 shares of the Company, which form 99.39% of the share capital, stand 

dematerialized. The processing activities with respect to the requests received for de-materialization are completed within 3-5 days from the date of 

receipt of request.  Under the depository system, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the company is INE 733A01018.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity :

These two Directors resigned from the Board effective 29.05.2019. However, pursuant to separate Interim Orders of Hon'ble High Court of Orissa, 

Cuttack dated 19.07.2019 and 01.08.2019 respectively keeping the disqualifications in abeyance, both of them were re-appointed by the Board as 

Additional Directors w.e.f. 07.08.2019 and also as Directors by the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on 19.09.2019. Non-filing of Balance 

Sheet / Annual Return with ROC which resulted in above disqualification does not pertain to Star Paper Mills Limited. Subsequently, above writ 

petitions were disposed off as withdrawn with liberty to file in the competent Court and the interim orders passed in the writ petitions stands vacated. 

These two Directors, have however resigned from the Board effective from 30th July, 2020. 

stDistribution of Shareholding as on 31  March, 2020.
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st
Category of Shareholders as on 31  March, 2020.

 Monthly high and low quotations of shares traded on the listed stock exchanges 

(Rs.)

The Company's equity shares are listed with the BSE Limited (Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), Mumbai)  and the National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited, Mumbai (NSE) under Stock Codes '516022' and 'STARPAPER' respectively, The Company has paid the requisite listing fees to the stock 

exchanges for the financial year 2019-20.

Registered Office : Plant location : Offices at :

31, Netaji Subhash Road Saharanpur  247 001,  9-10, B.S.Z Marg,

Kolkata  700 001 Uttar Pradesh   New Delhi   110 008

   Malviya Nagar

   Jaipur  302 017

Listing on stock exchanges

  ii)  23, Mauji Colony,

nd ndDuncan House, 2  Floor Seth Baldeodas Bajoria Road,  I) 2  Floor, Express Building,
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The schedule of approving the Financial Results of the Company is given below :

st stThe next financial year of the Company is 1  April 2020 to 31  March 2021.

Financial Calendar 2020-21

Credit rating

The company has not obtained any credit ratings during the financial year 2019-20.

I hereby declare that to the best  of my knowledge & belief, all the members of the Board and the senior management personnel of the company 
sthave affirmed their respective compliance  with the code of conduct of the company for the financial year ended 31  March, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board

Declaration of Managing Director under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

-Number of complaints disposed-of during the financial year -Nil

During the financial year 2019-20, there was no case reported under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013. Details are as under:

Madhukar Mishra

Sexual Harassment of Women

-Number of complaints filed during the financial year  -Nil

No special resolution requiring a postal ballot was placed before the last Annual General Meeting. Similarly, no special resolution requiring a 

postal ballot is being proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

-Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year -Nil

Postal Ballot

Managing Director

Place : New Delhi Shiromani Sharma
stDate : 31  July , 2020 Chairman
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2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and 

maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance 

of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

Opinion

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform 

Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

ICAI Firm Registration No. 016746 N

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Membership No. 010479

Auditors' Responsibility

4. Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as 

stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 

Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(“ICAI”). The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the 

Code of Ethics issued by ICAI.

To the Members of Star Paper Mills Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of regulations of Corporate Governance by Star Paper Mills Limited ('the Company') for the year ended 

March 31st 2020 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 'Listing Regulations').

3. The management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance 

as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the Corporate 

Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures include, but not limited to, verification of secretarial records and financial 

information of the Company and obtain necessary representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the 

Company.

Management's Responsibility

8. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our 

Scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy 

of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as whole.

9. Based on the procedures performed by us as referred in paragraph 7 and 8 above and according to the information and explanations given to 

us and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry Of Corporate Affairs And Securities And Exchange Board Of India warranted due to 

the spread of COVID-19 pandemic, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in the Listing regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2020 referred to in paragraph 1 above.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

10. This Certificate in neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management 

has conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. The Certificate is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations 

under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other persons or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume 

any liability or any duty or care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hand it may come without our 

prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this 

Certificate.

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi                 (P.K. Jain)

Date: 31.07.2020                      Partner

UDIN No. - 20010479AAAABR5919
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ANNEXURE-VI

Form No. MR - 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

STFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

31, Netaji Subhas Road,

Duncan House,

Kolkata – 700 001

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

 – UP Agriculture Produce Mandi Act, 1964

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and 

also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 
streport that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31  March 2020, subject to our 

observations made at Annexure - A below, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 

processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

 – The Indian Forest Act, 1927

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
stended on 31  March, 2020 according to the provisions of :

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 

Act and dealing with client [not applicable to the Company during the audit period];

v) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company : 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Star 

Paper Mills Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company') having CIN: L21011WB1936PLC008726. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

 – Indian Explosives Act, 1884

 – The Petroleum Act, 1936 

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 [not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period];

The Members,

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 [not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period];

 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 

and/or The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 [not applicable to the Company 

during the audit period];

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 [not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period]; and

Star Paper Mills Limited

iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :

To

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there under;

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 [not applicable to the Company during 

the audit period];

 – The Factories Act, 1948 and allied state laws. 

 – The Indian Boiler Act, 1923
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We further report that, subject to our observations made at Annexure - A below, during the audit period there was no specific event / action having a 

major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred above. 

C.P. No.-3824

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) 

issued by the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer and taken on record by the Board of Directors at its meeting(s), we are of the opinion that 

there are adequate systems and processes in place in the Company which is commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Proprietor

 UNIQUE CODE NUMBER: I2001WB209400

FCS-5401

Place: Kolkata For D. DUTT & CO.

UDIN No. : F005401B000541717

stDate: 31  July, 2020  Company Secretaries

 (DEBABRATA DUTT)

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 

Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings since the Company did not have any Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings;

a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under section 118(10) 

of  the  Companies  Act ,  2013 wi th  regard  to  Meet ings  of  the  Board  of  Di rector s  (SS-1)  and Genera l  Meet ings

(SS-2). 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

b) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited read with The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations]. 

 

Subject to our observations made at Annexure - A below, during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above and has generally adhered to the secretarial standards. 

We further report that :

a) Subject to our observations made at Annexure - A below, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days 

in advance for meetings other than those held at shorter notices and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member's views are captured and recorded as part of the Minutes.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company we have broadly reviewed the same, without carrying out detailed examination of all 

the relevant records / documents with a view to determine accuracy and completeness of periodical compliances. During the course of our audit, we 

have relied on information placed before the Board at its meetings and written representations made by the management in this regard and the 

reporting is limited to that extent.

We have been informed that the Company has appropriately responded to notices for show causes, claims, dues, demands, fines, penalties etc. 

received from various statutory / regulatory authorities under the laws, mentioned above and initiated actions for corrective rules, regulations 

measures, wherever necessary. 
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The Members,

a) Mr. Gouri Prasad Goenka [having DIN: 00030302] and Ms. Savita Laxmipathy Acharya [having DIN: 07038198] have been disqualified by the 

Registrar of Companies (ROC), Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the period from 01.11.2017 to 

31.10.2022. These two Directors resigned from the Board effective from 29.05.2019. However, pursuant to separate Interim Orders of Hon'ble 

High Court of Orissa, Cuttack dated 01.08.2019 keeping the disqualifications in abeyance, both of them were re-appointed by the Board as 

Additional Directors w.e.f. 07.08.2019 and also as Directors by the Members at the Annual General Meeting held on 19.09.2019. Non-filing of 

Balance Sheet / Annual Return with ROC which resulted in above disqualification does not pertain to Star Paper Mills Limited. Subsequently by 

separate Orders of Hon'ble High Court of Orissa, Cuttack the writ petitions were disposed off as withdrawn with liberty to file in the competent 

Court and the interim orders passed in the writ petitions stands vacated. These two Directors, have however resigned from the Board effective 
thfrom 30  July, 2020.

Annexure – A

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as  Annexure – B.

stOur observations on Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended 31  March, 2020 :

Annexure -A and B forms integral part of this report.

c) There was delay of one day in filing Quarterly Corporate Governance Report with Stock Exchanges under Regulation 27(2) of the Listing 

Regulations for the Quarter ended 31.03.2019 [instead of filing within due date of 15.04.2019 it was filed on 16.04.2019]. Pursuant to SEBI SOP 

Circular dated May 03, 2018 a fine of Rs. 2,360/- has been imposed by BSE and paid by the Company on 07.05.2019. Upon application by the 

Company, NSE waived the consequential fine vide its letter dated 08.08.2019.

To

b) In view of disqualification u/s164(2) remuneration aggregating paid/provided to those two directors is recoverable, subject to removal of 

disqualification granted by competent authority. Mr. G.P Goenka has filed a detailed representation to ROC, Kolkata (West Bengal) for 

removing the disqualification.

Annexure – B

d) Quarterly Corporate Governance Report for the Quarter ended 31.03.2020 was not filed within extended due date of 15.05.2020, but has been 

filed on 04.06.2020. The Company has received notices from BSE and NSE for non-compliance of Regulations 17(1), 18(1), 19(1)/(2), 20(2), 21(2) 

and 27(2) imposing fine. The Company has filed detailed reply explaining the reasons for delayed compliance due to unprecedented 

happenings of lockdown and other natural calamities and has requested BSE & NSE to withdraw the fines.

Star Paper Mills Limited

3. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents 

of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. 

Disclaimer: 

Management's Responsibility:

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, books of accounts, compliances of applicable direct and indirect 

tax laws of the company.

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to 

secretarial compliances based on our audit.

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain proper secretarial records, devise proper systems to endure compliance 

with the provisions of all Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards and also to ensure that the systems are adequate 

and operate effectively.

stOur Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31  March, 2020 of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Auditor's Responsibility:

4. We believe that the audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide 

us a basis of our opinion.
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9. Due to partial and sporadic lockdown and consequent restrictions on movement, we could not verify the original records of minutes of 

meetings of the Board of Directors and its various Committees and/or other relevant papers. 

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards 

and happening of events etc.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the company.

8. This Report has been prepared upon receipt / exchange of requisite information and documents through electronic mail during the periods of 

sporadic lockdown due to Covid-19 pandemic as notified by Government of West Bengal.

Proprietor

FCS-5401

C.P. No.-3824

 (DEBABRATA DUTT)

UDIN No. : F005401B000541717

stDate: 31  July, 2020       Company Secretaries

Place: Kolkata             For D. DUTT & CO.

 UNIQUE CODE NUMBER: I2001WB209400

stDate : 31  July , 2020                                                Chairman

Place : New Delhi                                                               Shiromani Sharma

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and

Form No. AOC-2

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 

section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto:

-Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:  Nil.

-Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: Nil.

For and on behalf of the Board

ANNEXURE-VII
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Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matters

Key Audit Matters

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid  Ind AS financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
stthe accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 2020, its profit including other 

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

a) Note 32.6 to the financial result describes the uncertainties and the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the company's operations and results 

as assessed by the management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on the future developments. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of  STAR PAPER MILLS LIMITED 

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Star Paper Mills  Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as 
stat March 31  2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the 

statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the  Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of 

the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the  Ind AS Financial 

Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 

and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the  Ind AS financial 

statements.

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes of the financial statement.

b) In view of disqualification u/s164(2) remuneration aggregating to Rs. 650.96 Lacs  paid/provided to two directors is recoverable subject to 

removal of disqualification granted by competent authority ( Note No. 32.5)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities 

described in the Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the  Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 

Accordingly our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment   of the risks of material misstatement of the  

Ind AS financial statement. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis 

for our audit opinion on the accompanying  Ind AS financial statements.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the 

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual 

report 2019-20, but does not include the  Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the  Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the  Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 

such other information is materially inconsistent with the  Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the  Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these  Ind AS 

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 

and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with [the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the  Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the  Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matter to communicate in each report

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the  Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these  Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 

Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 

the Act.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the  

Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 

public interest benefits of such communication.

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the  Ind AS 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements :

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

management.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of 

the Act, we give in “Annexure A” 

 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of 

those books.

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 

none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act 

except Mr. G.P. Goenka and Ms. Savita Laxmipathy Acharya.

 g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid/provided by the company to its Directors 

in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act except  recoverability of Rs. 650.96 Lacs as per Note No. 

32.5.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20   |   #  33

UDIN No. : 20010479AAAABQ3573

Place: New Delhi                (P.K. Jain)

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

  i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements; 

Chartered Accountants

stDate: 31  July, 2020                  Partner

  ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses.

  iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(Firm Registration No. 016746 N)

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.

Membership No. 010479

Annexure 'A’
to Independent Auditors'  Report of Star Paper Mills Limited

 (b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management according to the regular programme of periodical verification in phased 

manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its fixed assets.  No material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

 (c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

ii.    The inventories of the Company at all its locations (except stock in transit) have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 

intervals and the discrepancies which were noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material; 

iii.  The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in 

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013;

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with provisions of section 185 and 

186 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities;

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit from public;

 “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date)

I. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the 

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima-facie, prescribed accounts 

and records have been made and maintained.  We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to 

determine whether they are accurate and complete;

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations and records of the Company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed 

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Goods and Service Tax, 

Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no arrears of 

outstanding statutory dues for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable as on 31st March, 2020; 
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viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks;

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial/further public offer (including debt instruments) and  the company has not taken any   

term loans  during the year. 

xi. Managerial Remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provision of Section 197 

read with schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 except  recoverability of Rs. 651.96 Lacs  as per Note No. 32.5

xiii. According to the information and explanation give to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, all transactions with 

the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the financial 

statements, etc as required by the applicable accounting standard;

xiv. The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placements of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 

year under review;

 For JAIN PRAMOD JAIN & CO. 

xvi. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

(Firm Registration No. 016746 N)

xv. The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with Directors or persons connected with him;

Chartered Accountants

x. Based upon the audit procedure performed and information and explanation given to us, we report that no fraud by the company or any 

fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit;

xii. Provision of Nidhi Company is not applicable to the Company;

Place : New Delhi                              (P. K. JAIN) 

Date : 31st July, 2020                Partner 

                       M. No. 010479

 (b)  According to the records and information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of custom duty that have been 

deposited on account of any dispute. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the dues in 

respect of income tax or sales tax or service tax or Goods and Service Tax or excise duty or value added tax that have not been 

deposited with the appropriate authority on account of dispute and the forum where the dispute is pending are given below:
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub –section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 For JAIN PRAMOD JAIN & CO. 

to the Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date on the Standalone Financial Statement of Star Paper Mills Limited.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Star Paper Mills Limited as at March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit 

of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Auditors' Responsibility

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. :  016746 N)

The company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the Internal Control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

“The Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.” These responsibilities include  

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating  effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,  and the timely preparation of reliable  financial information, as required under  

the Companies Act, 2013.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Place : New Delhi                              (P. K. JAIN) 
st Date : 31 July, 2020                   Partner 

                       M. No. 010479

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes thosepolicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the  transactions and disposition of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable  

assurance that transactions are recorded  as necessary  to permit preparation of financial statement in accordance  with generally  accepted 

accounting principles, and that  receipts  and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance  with authorizations of management 

and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention  or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of  the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 

the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate.

Opinion

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We  conducted 

our audit in accordance with Guidance note on Audit  of Internal Financial  Controls over  Financial Reporting (the” Guidance Note” ) and the 

Standard on Auditing, issued by ICAI  prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act2013,  to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 

standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 

in all material respects. 

Annexure 'B’

In our opinion, the company has in all material  respect, an adequate internal financial controls systems over financial reporting and such internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria  established  by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and their operating effectiveness, our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining and understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that  a material  weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31, MARCH, 2020

1.  a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT :

1.  b) RIGHT OF USE ASSETS (BUILDING)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
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3.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

4.  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

5.  INVENTORIES

6.  BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

7.  CURRENT INVESTMENTS
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8.  TRADE RECEIVABLES

9.  a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

9.  b) BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

10.  LOANS (UNSECURED CONSIDERED GOOD)

11.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

12.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

13.  ASSET HELD FOR SALE
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15.2  Capital Redemption Reserve

Represent reserve created during redemption of 5% Cumulative Tax Free Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100 each and it is a non-distributable 

reserve.

15.3  Securities Premium Reserve

15.4  General Reserve

Securities Premium Reserve represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities and is available for utilisation as specified under 

Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

15.5  Retained Earnings

15.1  Refer Statement of changes in Equity for movement in balances of reserves

The general reserve is created from time to time by appropriating profits from retained earnings. The general reserve is created by a transfer from 

one component of equity to another and

accordingly it is not reclassified to the Statement of profit and loss.

Retained earnings generally represents the undistributed profit/ amount of accumulated earnings of the company. It also includes Rs.24734.05 

lakhs being fair value of land as on date of transition taken as deemed cost.

14.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

14.2  RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES OUTSTANDING

14.3  SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% EQUITY SHARES

15.  OTHER EQUITY
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 b.  The actuarial gains and losses arising on defined benefit obligations have been recognised in OCI.

15.6  Other Comprehensive Income

 i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

 a.   The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of non-current investments in OCI. This reserve represents the cumulative 

gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value. The company transfers amounts from this reserve to 

retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are disposed.

Other Comprehensive Income represent the balance in equity for items to be accounted in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and comprises of the 

following:

15.7  The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of Rs. 2.50/- per share to be paid on fully paid equity shares in respect of the financial year 

ended March 31, 2020. This equity dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and has not been included 

as a liability in these financial statements. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is Rs. 390.21 lakhs.

16.  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

-

17.  PROVISIONS

18.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

19.  BORROWINGS
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20.  TRADE PAYABLES

21.  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

22.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

23.  PROVISIONS

24.  CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

25.  REVENUE FROM OPERATION
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26.  OTHER INCOME

27.  COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Opening Stock :

Stock in Process

Finished Stock

Closing Stock :

Stock in Process

Finished Stock

Salaries, Wages, Bonus Etc.

Provident and other Funds

Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses

Depreciation Expenses

Lease Assets (ROU)

Interest Exp. (on working capital)

On other Accounts

0.00 6.77

116.75249.82
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32.4  Fair value of  investment in ISG Traders Limited has been done as at 31.12.2019 due to non availability of financial accounts as at 31.03.2020.

32.2  During the year, the company has incurred Rs 47.45 lakhs (March 31,2019 Rs. 67.68. lakhs) on account of research and development expenses 

which has been charged to statement of Profit & Loss.

32.3  During the year, the Company has incurred Rs. 128.27 lakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs. 110.98 lakhs) on account of Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) including Charity and Donations.

32.5  In view of disqualification under section 164(2), remuneration aggregating to Rs. 650.96 lakhs paid/provided to two directors is  recoverable 

subject to any approval for removal of disqualification granted by comptent autority .

32.6  The Company’s manufacturing operation was impacted for a certain period as a consequence of complete lockdown imposed by Central and 

State Government authorities in India considering public health and safety due to COVID-19 pandemic thereby restricting normal business activities. 

Inspite of partial withdrawal of lockdown, the ongoing restrictions by the appropriate Government authorities to contain the pandemic continue to 

impact normal production and cause supply chain disruption, etc. As per the current assessment, the Company does not foresee incremental risk on 

carrying amounts of inventories and recoverability of trade receivables and other assets given the measures being pursued to safeguard/mitigate 

related risks.  However, the eventual outcome due to ongoing said COVID-19 pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of 

approval of these financial statements. 

32.7 Right-of-use Assets  : (Building)

A.The company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 and related 

interpretation and guidance. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of 
stinitial application is recognized in retained earnings as at April 1 , 2019 as under:
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34.  COMPONENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Capital Work-in-progress includes preoperative and development expenses, equipments to be installed, construction and erection materials, etc. 

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of PPE when completed and ready for intended use. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future 

economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 

property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

Parts of an item of PPE having different useful lives and material value and subsequent expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment arising on 

account of capital improvement or other factors are accounted for as separate components.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2. Statement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal lakhs except otherwise stated.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date under current market conditions.

3.2 Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition except fair value of freehold land on date of 

transition considered as deemed cost or construction and subsequent improvements thereto less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 

if any. Cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or its construction cost including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,  inward 

freight, dismantling costs, installation expenses wherever applicable and any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and 

recoverable taxes. For major projects, interest and other costs incurred on / related to direct borrowings to finance projects / fixed assets during 

construction period and related pre-operative expenses, if appropriate, are capitalized. 

3.1 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention excepting certain financial instruments that are measured in 

terms of relevant Ind AS at fair values/ amortized costs at the end of each reporting period and certain class of Property, Plant and Equipment i.e 

freehold land which on the date of transition have been fair valued to be considered as deemed costs.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

Star Paper Mills Limited ('the company') is a public limited company in India having its plant at Saharanpur the State of Uttar Pradesh and registered 

office at Duncan House, 2nd Floor, 31, Netaji Shubash Road, Kolkata in the State of West Bengal and engaged in the manufacture and supply of Paper 

and Paper Board as its core business. It produces a wide range of Industrial Packaging and cultural paper catering to all segment of the consumer. The 

Company’s shares are listed on the National Stock Exchange Limited and BSE Limited.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2016 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with effect from April 1, 2017 and therefore, Ind AS's issued, 

not i f ied  and made ef fect ive  have  been cons idered  for  the  purpose  of  preparat ion  of  these  f inanc ia l  s ta tements .

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with and to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable.

35.  COMPANY OVERVIEW, BASIS OF PREPARATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Corporate Information

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis under historical cost convention, except for the items that have 

been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS.

Company’s financial statements are presented in India Rupees, which is also its functional currency. All amount in the financial statements and 

accompanying notes are presented in lakhs Indian Rupees and have been rounded-off to two decimal place in accordance with the provisions of 

Schedule III, unless stated otherwise.

As the operating cycle cannot be identified in normal course, the same has been assumed to have duration of 12 months. All Assets and Liabilities 

have been classified as current or non-current as per the operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial 

Statements’ and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Fair Value Measurement
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Depreciation and Amortization of Expenses:

Depreciation on PPE is provided on the basis of life reviewed and assessed by the company at the end of the year based on technical evaluation of 

relevant class of assets, as detailed below :

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate 

(EIR) method. 

The classification of financial instruments whether to be measured at Amortized Cost, at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value 

Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate. Classification of financial 

instruments are determined on initial recognition.

Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 

the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are 

measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 

change in value and are having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, are considered as cash equivalents. Cash and 

cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(ii) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal gain or loss arising 

on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3 Derecognition of Tangible assets

3.4 Leases

The Company’s lease asset primarily consists of lease for building. The Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a 

lease or not a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for 

a consideration. This policy has been applied to contract existing and entered into on or after April 1, 2019.The Company has elected not to recognize 

Right-of-use Assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases i.e. lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company 

recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.The Company recognizes a Right-of-use Asset and a 

lease liability at the lease commencement date.The Right-of-use Asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial costs incurred. The Right-of-use Asset is 

subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The lease liability is initially 

measured at the present value of the lease payments that are  not paid at thecommencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental 

borrowing rate.Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured on amortized cost basis.In the comparative period, lease payments under operating 

leases are recognized as an expense in the statement of  profit and loss over the lease term.

3.5 Impairment of Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable 

amount of assets is determined. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying amount of assets either 

belonging to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of assets’ fair value less 

cost to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of the assets are discounted to their present 

value at appropriate rate.

3.6 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 

financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted 

from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expected to be realised or settled within operating cycle of the company 

or otherwise these are classified as non-current.
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(vii) Derecognition of financial instruments

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the company measures the loss 

allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

3.7 Biological Assets 

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ when all of the following criteria’s are 

(iii) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

(v) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

On de-recognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 

and the sum of the consideration received and receivable are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Company’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference 

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and 

Loss.

A financial asset is assessed for impairment at each reporting date. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that 

one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The Company derecognises a financial asset or a group of financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when 

it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party and also transfer qualifies for 

derecognition under Ind-AS - 109.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees and points paid or received, 

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the Financial Asset or Financial Liability to the gross carrying 

amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial 

recognition.

(viii) Valuation of Investments

The company holds investments in equity which are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income. The Company's investments in 

mutual fund schemes have been valued at fair value and are recognised in Profit and Loss Account.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 

achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are 

measured at fair value and changes therein are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The Company has made an irrevocable decision to consider equity instruments not held for trading to be recognised at FVTOCI.

(iv) For the purpose of para (ii) and (iii) above, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and interest consists of consideration 

for the time value of money and associated credit risk.

(vi) Impairment of financial assets

Financial Instruments which does not meet the criteria of amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are classified as Fair 

Value through Profit or loss. These are recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

On de-recognition of assets measured at FVTOCI the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified 

from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Biological assets of the company comprises of unharvested clonal plants that are classified as current biological assets. The company recognizes 

biological assets when, and only when, the company controls the assets as a result of past events, it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with such assets will flow to the company and the fair value or cost of the biological assets can be measured reliably. Biological assets are 

measured on initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period at its fair value less costs to sell. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair 

value less costs to sell of biological assets are included in statement of profit and loss for the period in which it arises.

3.8 Inventories

The inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, cost of inventories other than raw material is ascertained on 'weighted 

average' basis. The value of raw material is determined by first in first out method. Cost in respect of raw materials and stores and spares includes 

expenses incidental to procurement of the same. Cost in respect of finished goods and wrapper represents material, labour and other manufacturing 

cost and appropriate portion of overheads but does not include interest, selling and distribution overheads. Cost in respect of process stock 

represents, cost incurred up to the stage of completion.

3.9 Asset Held for Sale
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met: (i) decision has been made to sell. (ii) the assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition. (iii) the assets are being actively 

marketed and (iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less 

costs to sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

3.10 Foreign Currency Transactions 

3.11 Equity Share Capital

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Par value of the 

equity shares is recorded as share capital and the amount received in excess of par value is classified as Securities Premium.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of 

past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are 

not recognised for future operating losses. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is 

probable.

3.13 Employee Benefits

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign 

currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and corresponding gain or loss is adjusted to 

the value of the concerned asset or liabiity. The company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate 

risk using  forward exchange contracts. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measurement to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on 

whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, on the nature of the item being hedged.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from 

past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the same or a reliable estimate of the amount in this respect cannot be made.

Employee benefits are accrued in the year in which services are rendered by the employees. Short term employee benefits are recognised as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered. 

Revenue from contract with customer:

3.14 Revenue 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that 

reflects the consideration entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable, taking into account contractual terms and conditions. Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will 

flow to the Company and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably. Revenue is disclosed net of returns, incentives and returns, as 

applicable. Variable consideration includes volume discounts, price concessions, liquidity damages, incentives, etc.

Accordingly, due to the significant risk associated with revenue recognition in accordance with terms of Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with 

customers’,  it was determined to be a key audit matter in our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund etc, is being made in accordance with statute and are recognised as and when 

incurred.

Contribution to defined benefit plans consisting of contribution to Gratuity and Pension are determined at the end of the year at present value of the 

amount payable using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gain and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 

assumptions are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Other long term employee benefits consisting of Leave Encashment are determined at the end of the year at present value of the amount payable 

using actuarial valuation techniques. The changes in the amount payable including actuarial gain/loss are recognised in the Statement of profit and 

loss

The company adopted Ind As 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" using Cumulative Catch up Trasition method w.e.f. 01.04.2018
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Export Benefits

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset 

realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Current income tax is provided on the taxable income and recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, 

using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Income tax expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the net charge of the deferred taxes is recognised in the income statement 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income

3.19 Segment Reporting

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the measurement principle of Ind AS requires management to make estimates, 

judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting 

estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 

management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are 

recognised in the year in which the results are known / materialised and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments and the use of assumptions in the 

financial statements have been disclosed below. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year are discussed below:

Export benefits are accounted for as and when the ultimate realisability of such benefits are established.

3.15 Borrowing Costs

3.16 Research and Development Expenditure

3.17 Taxes on Income

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements and the 

corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 

differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits 

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Borrowing cost comprises of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of the funds. All borrowing costs are recognised in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method except to the extent attributable to qualifying Property Plant Equipment (PPE) 

which are capitalized to the cost of the related assets. A qualifying PPE  is an asset, that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent considered as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Interest, Dividend and Claims

Interest Income is recognised on time proportion basis. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Interest has 

been accounted using effective interest rate method. Insurance claims/ other claims are accounted as and when admitted/ settled.

Research and development cost (other than cost of fixed assets acquired) are charged as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss in the year in 

which they are incurred

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic 

benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with asset 

will be realized.The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

3.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 

the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average 

number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating Segments are identified and reported taking into account the different risk and return, organisation structure and internal reporting 

system.

4. Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and uncertainty



FAIR VALUATION TECHNIQUES

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, current financial liabilities/financial assets and borrowings approximate 

their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial 

assets and financial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in thefinancial statements approximate their fair values.

stThe Company has used fair value of land as carried out by external valuer as on the date of transition i.e. 1  April 2016 as deemed costs. Such fair 

valuations involves higher degree of uncertainty and subjectivity.

The Company evaluates whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired and determines the amount of impairment 

allowance as a result of the inability of the customers to make required payments. The Company bases the estimates on the ageing of the trade 

receivables balance, credit-worthiness of the trade receivables and historical write-off experience. If the financial conditions of the trade receivable 

were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

4.3 Income taxes’

Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the 

provision for income taxes. The deferred tax liability consequent to fair valuation of land and financial instruments involving estimation for timing 

differences has been recognised in these financial statements

4.4 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past 

operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires 

the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. 

4.5 Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Critical estimate of the DBO involves a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate, 

anticipation of future salary increases etc. as estimated by Independent Actuary appointed for this purpose by the Management. Variation in these 

assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

4.2 Impairment loss on trade receivables

4.1 Fair value as Deemed cost for PPE

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amount and fair value are as follows :

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

Investments in liquid and short-term mutual funds  are determined using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held. 

Quoted Investments for which quotations are not available have been determined by an external independent valuer appointed in this respect with 

reference to the market value of the investment held by that company, P/E ratio of similar sector company along with premium/discount for 

controlling interest.

stThe following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31 , 2020  :

st(*) Figures in round brackets ( ) indicate figures as at March 31 , 2019.

a) Level 1 :  Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

c) Level 3 :  Inputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market data.

During the year ended March 31, 2020 , there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed 

for such measurement:

b) Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly for the asset or liability.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Inputs used in fair valuation of Financial assets and liabilities not within the operating cycle of the company is amortised based on the borrowing rate 

of the company.

Equity Instruments are valued based on the market value of investments held by that company, P/E ratio of similar sector company along with 

premium/discount of controlling interest.

The Inputs used in fair valuation measurement are as follows:

The Company's activities are exposed to variety of financial risks. The key financial risks includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

Company's foucs is to forsee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The 

risks are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and accordingly financial risks are identified, measured and managed with the Company's 

policies and risk objectives.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The 

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s foreign currency denominated 

transactions.

OTHER PRICE RISK

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price fluctuations resulting in variation in the fair value of future cash flows of a 

financial instrument. The major components of Market risks are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. Financial instruments 

affected by market risk includes trade receivables, borrowings, investments and trade and other payables.

The company's investments in mutual funds and equity instruments which are fair valued through profit and loss and other comprehensive income 

respectively. The company's investment in Equity instruments are strategic and long term in nature and these are further subject to impairment 

testing as per the policy followed in this respect and are not expected to be material whereas investments in mutual funds are for short term in nature 

for deployment of surplus with the company which are subject to market conditions.

MARKET RISK

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from these transactions and follows established risk management policies. As at the year 

end the company had no exposure in the foreign currency and neither in the previous year.
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Borrowings at fixed interest rate exposes the company to the fair value interest rate risk. The company has no borrowings as at 31.03.2020

INTEREST RATE RISK

With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the impact of the borrowing cost on floating rate portion of loans and 

borrowings.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The 

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).  To manage this, the management has a credit policy in 

place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Major supplies are through wholeseller who have paid deposit to the 

company and the risk involved in payment default is minimum. Further, evaluating the credit worthiness of the customers has minimised the risk of 

default by other segment customers. Besides, the risk of export receivables is covered under Credit Insurance.The Company periodically assesses the 

financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual 

risk limits are set accordingly. Further the company obtains necessary security including letter of credits and/or bank guarantee to mitigate its credit 

risk.

The carrying amount of respective financial assets recognised in the financial statements, (net of impairment losses) represents the Company’s 

maximum exposure to credit risk. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Of the trade 

receivables balance at the end of the year, there are two customer (Promod Paper Products and Nirmal Traders ) having outstanding of Rs. 233.20 

lakhs which accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as at March 31, 2020 .

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE NEITHER PAST DUE NOR IMPAIRED

Cash and cash equivalents, investment and deposits with banks are neither past due nor impaired. Cash and cash equivalents with banks are held with 

reputed and credit worthy banking institutions.

FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. 

Receivables from customers are reviewed/evaluated periodically by the management and appropriate provisions are made to the extent recovery 

there against has been considered to be remote.

Trade receivables disclosed above includes certain amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period but against which no credit losses has 

been expected to arise.

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's 

objective is to maintain optimum level of liquidity to meet it's cash and collateral requirements at all times. The company relies on borrowings and 

internal accruals to meet its fund requirement. The current committed line of credit are sufficient to meet its short to medium term fund requirement. 

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. 

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be 

required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows as on March 31, 2020

LIQUIDITY RISK

LIQUIDITY AND INTEREST RISK TABLES
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Interest rate and currency of borrowings

The company has current financial assets which will be realised in ordinary course of business. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on 

demand to meet expected operational expenses.

The company relies on mix of borrowings and excess operating cash flows to meet its need for funds and ensures that it does not breach any financial 

covenants stipulated by the lender.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and 

maximise shareholder value. The Company’s  objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can 

continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The Company is focused on keeping strong total equity base to 

ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required without impacting the risk profile of the 

Company. 

The gearing ratio are as follows :

a)  Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognized for the year are as under :

37.   POST RETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The disclosures required under IND Accounting Standard 19 on  “Employee Benefits” are given below :
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The employee’s gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is 

determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional 

unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for pension and leave 

encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

b)  Defined Benefit Plans

Notes: i) Assumptions relating to future salary increases, attrition, interest rate for discount & overall expected rate of return on Assets have been considered based on 

relevant economic factors such as inflation, market growth & other factors applicable to the period over which the obligation is expected to be settled.

 ii) The Company  contributed Rs 220.00 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 215 lakhs)  to Gratuity fund in 2019-20.



The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, 

and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial 

assumptions the same method (projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognised within 

the Balance Sheet.

Sensitivity due to mortality & withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

OCI presentation of defined benefit plan

- Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans is shown under OCI as Items that will 

not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the income tax effect on the same.

Actuarial liability for short term benefits (leave encashment cost) is shown as current and non-current provision in balance sheet. When there is 

surplus in defined benefit plan, company is required to measure the net defined benefit asset at the lower of; the surplus in the defined benefit plan 

and the assets ceiling, determined using the discount rate specified, i.e. market yield at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, this is 

applicable for domestic companies, foreign company can use corporate bonds rate.

- Leave encashment cost is in the nature of short term employee benefits.

Expense for service cost, net interest on net defined benefit liability (asset) is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. IND AS 19 do not require 

segregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined liability (Assets) is shown as current and non-current provision in balance 

sheet as per IND AS 1.

The mortality rates used are as published by one of the leading life insurance companies in India.

38.  CALCULATION OF EARNING PER SHARE IS AS FOLLOWS :

Presentation in Statement of Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet. 

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.
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39. COMMITMENTS NOT PROVIDED FOR

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) Rs.120.68 Lakhs (March 31, 2019 Rs. 89.06 Lakhs)

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR IN RESPECT OF: 

Note: The Company's pending litigations comprises of claim against the company and proceedings pending with Taxation/ Statutory/ Government 

Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, and disclosed the contingent 

liabilities, where applicable, in its financial statements. The company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on 

its financial position. Future cash outflows in respect of above is dependent upto the outcome of judgment/decisions.

A) Names of related parties and description of relationship

41. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE AS IDENTIFIED BY THE MANAGEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND 

AS) 24 ON "RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES" ARE AS FOLLOWS :

Mr. G.P. Goenka – Executive Chairman

Mr. S. Sharma – Director

Mr. M.P. Pinto – Director

Mr. S.V. Goenka – Director and Son of Executive Chairman

Mr. Sunil Srivastav – Director

Kavita Marketing Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. M. Mishra – Managing Director

Ms. C.M. Vasudev – Director

Ms. S.L. Acharya – Director

Mr. Sandeep Rastogi – Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. M. Mishra – Wife of Managing Director

Mr. Saurabh Arora – Company Secretary

ISG Traders Limited
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B) Related Party Transactions

* Post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits have been disclosed based on actual payment made on retirement/resignation of services, but does 

not include provision made on actuarial basis as the same is available for all the employees together.
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42. SEGMENT REPORTING

 a). The Company operates mainly in one business segment viz Paper being primary segment and all other activities revolve around the 

main activity. The secondary segment is geographical, information  related to which is given as under :

41.1 The above related party information is as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditor

45. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS FOR BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

 The following table gives the information about how the fair value of the biological assets were determined:

44. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GURANTEE GIVEN OR SECURITY PROVIDED AND INVESTMENT MADE DURING THE YEAR AS PER 

SECTION 186(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013.

Trade Receivables are generally non-interest bearing and are  on payment terms of 0 to 9 days. Contract liabilities include advances received against 

delivery of Paper. The Performance obligation in relation to revenue recognition arising from contract with customer is satisfied upon customer's 

clearance of goods sold. 

* Converted into Sales in 2019-2020  Rs. 160.21 lacs

 (d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss with the contracted price : 

 (b) Disaggregated revenue information (Refer Note No. 41)

43. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS :

 (c) Contract Balances 

 b). Sales to two Customers of the Company is Rs.7767.96 lacs (Previous Year  Rs. 14061.67 lacs) which is more than 10% of the Company's 

total turnover. 

 (a) With effect from 1st April 2018, Ind AS 115 " Revenue from Contract with Customers" supersedes Ind As 18 "Revenue". The core principle 

of the new standards is that an entity should recognise revenue when the control of the goods or services underlying the particular 

performance obligation is transferred to customers. The said Transition does not have any significant effect on the financial statement 

of the Company.
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48. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified to conform with current year presentation wherever considered necessary.

46. The financial risk associated to agriculture would include climate change, price fluctuation and input cost increases. Being dependent on 

rainfall, any shortfall would directly impact the production. The sale of clonal plant is largely through the farmer system, any price fluctuation 

would impact profitability. Increased wages also has a direct impact on the cost of production because of labour intensive nature of the 

business operations.

47. Figures have been given in Rupee lakhs and have been rounded off to two decimal places.

 Management is continuously monitoring all the above factors. Investment in irrigation, a planned replanting programme to ensure higher 

yields and improving efficiency of labour and modernisation are some of the measures taken by the management to mitigate the risks.
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STCASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020

Cash Flow from the Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Exceptional Items

Adjustments for:

Net Cash from Investing Activities

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for :

C. Cash Flow from the Financing Activities

4914.96 5153.30
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Cash & Cash Equivalent includes:

Balances with Banks
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